Public Document Pack

Oxfordshire Growth Board

Minutes of a meeting of the Oxfordshire Growth Board held at Council Chamber, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 31 March 2016 at 2.00 pm

Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman)

Councillor Ian Hudspeth (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Matthew Barber Councillor John Cotton Councillor Sir Barry Norton

Councillor Bob Price

Also Alistair Fitt, University Representative

Present: Adrian Lockwood, Deputy Chair Oxfordshire Local Enterprise

Partnership and Skills Board Chair

Nigel Tipple, Chief Executive, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise

Partnership

Apologies Andrew Harrison, Business Representative

for Jon Mansbridge, Environment Agency

absence: Phil Shadbolt, Business Representative (Bicester)

David Warburton, Director HCA

Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive, Cherwell District Council

Peter Clark, Head of Paid Service, Oxfordshire County Council Bev Hindle, Deputy Director, Strategy & Infrastructure

Planning, Oxfordshire County Council

Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy,

Cherwell District Council

Anna Robinson, Strategic Director, South Oxfordshire & Vale of

White Horse District Councils

Christine Gore, Strategic Director, West Oxfordshire District

Council

Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections Aaron Hetherington, Democratic and Elections Officer

20 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

21 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 2 February 2016 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

22 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

23 **Public Participation**

The Chairman reported that in accordance with the Public Participation Scheme five public participation requests had been received. None of the five individuals who had submitted questions was present at the meeting to present them to the Board. The questions were therefore circulated to Board members.

The Chairman advised that responses to the submitted questions would be sent directly to the parties who had submitted them, made available on the Growth Board webpages and published with the minutes of the meeting.

24 Post SHMA Strategic Work Programme update report

The Head of Strategic Planning and Economy (Cherwell District Council) presented the report of the Growth Board Programme Manager which provided the Growth Board (the Board) with an update on the Post-SHMA Strategic Work Programme (the Programme).

Resolved

(1) That the both progress of the Programme to date and the fact that it will not be achieved without the full continued commitment of all partners to the Programme be noted and that commitment be reaffirmed.

25 Strategic Transport Forum report

The Growth Board Programme Manager and Deputy Director, Strategy and Infrastructure Planning (Oxfordshire County Council) submitted a report which provided the Growth Board with an introduction to the Strategic Transport Forum (the Forum), a newly formed sub-group of England's Economic Heartland Alliance. The report also advised on the proposed work programme the streams the forum is developing.

Resolved

- (1) That the report be noted.
- (2) That the executive officers group be instructed to bring a further report to the next Oxfordshire Growth Board meeting, outlining the connections between work strand LGF3 and our own internal county priorities.

Future Local Government Structures report

The Chairman introduced the report of Future Local Government Structures which recommended that the Board note that the five District Councils for Oxfordshire had together with partners commissioned a report into the potential for Unitary Councils together with a combined authority and that the County Council had indicated that they proposed to separately commission work that would review all options for local government structures.

A letter from Oxford City Council (representing the districts) addressed to Oxford County Council, together with a briefing note from Oxford County Council had been included with the agenda pack.

Councillor Barber proposed that the Board note the government's response to the devolution proposals presented in December 2015 which indicated that a different and stronger form of governance was required for the proposals to make progress. Councillor Barber reported that in order to forward a devolution bid, the five Oxfordshire district councils, together with South Northamptonshire Council and Cotswold District Council, have commissioned a feasibility study for a wide range of unitary local government options and proposed that the Board welcome this initiative and urge Oxfordshire County Council to join with the Districts in the commissioning and managing of this study, rather than duplicating this work by commissioning a separate study to cover the same ground

Councillor Price seconded the proposal.

Resolved

- (1) That the report be noted.
- (2) That the Board notes that the response from government to the devolution proposals that were presented collectively to DCLG/BIS/Cabinet Office in December 2015 indicated clearly that a different and stronger form of governance was required for the proposals to make progress.
- (3) The Board also notes that, in order to forward a devolution bid, the five district councils, together with South Northamptonshire Council and Cotswold District Council, have commissioned a feasibility study for a wide range of unitary local government options.
- (4) The Board welcomes this initiative outlined in resolution (3) and urges Oxfordshire County Council to join with the Districts in the commissioning and managing of this study, rather than duplicating this work by commissioning a separate study to cover the same ground.

27 Work Programme

The Board considered its work programme and noted that an additional report outlining the connections between work strand LGF3 and our own internal

Oxfordshire Growth Board - 31 March 2016

county priorities. would be submitted to the May meeting in accordance with the resolution at agenda item 7.

Resolved

That, subject to the addition of a report outlining the connections between work strand LGF3 and our own internal county priorities to the May meeting, the work programme be noted.

28 Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 2.40 pm

Chairman:

Date:

Oxfordshire Growth Board Thursday 31 March 2016

Agenda Item 5: Public Participation

In accordance with the public participation scheme, requests to address the meeting and questions submitted have been listed in the order submitted.

The time limit for public participation is 30 minutes.

Restrictions on requests to address the Board:

- Must be on a substantive agenda item
- May speak for up to 3 minutes.
- With the leave of the Chairman, any questions of clarification asked of the speaker by Growth Board members should be duly answered.
- There will be no debate on any representations made except to the extent that they are considered when the relevant agenda item is considered later in the meeting.

Restrictions on questions submitted to the Board:

- Questions shall be directly relevant to some matter in which the Growth Board has powers and duties and which directly affects the area of Oxfordshire.
- Submitted questions shall be dealt with in the order of receipt by the host authority.
- The questioner may read his/her question, but the Chairman will do so if the questioner wishes for that, or is not present at the meeting. No supplementary question may be asked.
- The Chairman will answer submitted questions. This may take the form of an oral statement, or may be given subsequently in writing to the questioner. A written copy of the response will be circulated to all Growth Board Members. It is intended the written response will be given within ten working days of the meeting.
- No discussion shall take place on the question or the answer.

Public Participation Requests

Peter Jay, Chairman of ROAR, Member of NNGO steering committee
 "Our recent research [attached] suggests that, based on average weekly
 earnings, a couple of full-time average earners in Oxfordshire could at a
 maximum potentially 'afford' to buy a house costing approximately
 £260,000. How many of the 100,000 houses that the Growth Board is promoting
 in Oxfordshire by 2031 will meet this more realistic definition of 'affordable', as
 opposed to the '20% off market value' definition used by developers?"

The SHMA is not being 'promoted' by the Growth Board. It was commissioned by the five District Councils and the County Council to form an up to date evidence base and so inform the development of each Districts' Local Plan, as local planning authorities are required to have as

set out in the NPPF. In terms of calculations of affordability, the Oxfordshire planning authorities follow the set national advice as set out in the Planning Policy Guidance from CLG. This guidance sets the framework for the definitions of what is deemed to be affordable housing and for framing the calculations of the proportion of houses that should judged to be 'affordable' in each Local Plan.'

• Pamela Roberts, on behalf of Save Gavray Meadows (Bicester) Campaign "The growth planned for Oxfordshire will have a considerable effect on its rural nature, environment and ecology, yet there is a notable absence of a Green Infrastructure Strategy to inform any of the Growth Board's decisionmaking. Who is responsible for forming this strategy and when will it be published?"

The post SHMA Strategic Work programme is designed to provide the Growth board with a sustainable scenario for meeting oxford's unmet housing need that will be then used to agree the apportionment of unmet housing need across the county, not to decide upon development sites to meet the unmet need. Nonetheless, as part of the consideration of the apportionment the Board will take all relevant matters of sustainability into account including the provision or requirement for green infrastructure.

Subsequently, local planning authorities will consider how to meet their apportionment of unmet need and will once again, as part of their local plan processes examine the requirements for green infrastructure, their decisions on this will be tested through local plan examination.

Finally, both pieces of work will be informed by the county wide green infrastructure action plan being prepared by a partnership of local organisations and led by OxLEP.

Helen Marshall, Director, CPRE Oxfordshire

'The recent Oxfordshire Green Belt Study found that all of the land with the Oxford Green Belt fulfilled at least one of the purposes of the Green Belt. In particular, the land South of Grenoble Road, the key expansion target for the City Council for at least twenty years, was rated high (very valuable) against the key function of the Green Belt of protecting open countryside from urban sprawl, and scored well on other criteria. CPRE Oxfordshire believes that a housing development at Grenoble Road would be an unjustifiable desecration of the permanence and openness of the Oxford Green Belt. Given that the public has been given no sight of the 'criteria to test the spatial options' (Para 11 Strategic Options Assessment Project), can the Growth Board confirm whether or not Grenoble Road is being considered as part of this work and, in light of this, what is its view on Oxford City's recently stated intention to bring forward an application for 4,000 houses in this area? What faith can the public have in the process if the work is done in secret and yet one of the participants is already pre-judging the outcome?'

The Growth Board, wishing to ensure that its examination of spatial areas of search was comprehensive, agreed that they would examine all possible options for growth throughout the county. This includes an examination of relevant areas within the green belt, such as land adjacent to Grenoble Road and these sites are included within the long list of areas of search being examined.

However as has been stated by the Board on a number of occasions the Programme is not designed to recommend growth options, merely to use a sustainable scenario to underpin decisions about how best to apportion the unmet housing need for Oxford across the other districts. It will be for each individual district planning authority to decide, through a local plan process subject to public scrutiny, how they wish to meet that need and what sites they wish to bring forward. In the case of land adjacent to Grenoble road the relevant planning authority is South Oxfordshire DC and any questions about developer initiatives concerning this land are a matter for them alone and should be addressed to them.

- Ian Green, Oxford Civic Society
 Question referring to Agenda Item Post SHMA Strategic Work Programme
- 1. In general we are concerned that this important work programme does not appear to include public participation.

2. Specifically -

- 2.1. Paragraph 11 of the Post SHMA Strategic Work Programme Update confirms that 'the first major task of the (Strategic Options Assessment) Project was agreement to a set of criteria to test the spatial options. This has been completed and Land Use Consultants are now engaged with examining each of the options.' Will these criteria be made available to the public?
- 2.2. Will the reports to be completed in April 2016 under the heading 'High level sustainability and strategic options assessment' in the updated Work Programme be made available to the public?
- 2.3. Will the check and challenge workshop timetabled for April 15th and under the heading 'High level sustainability and strategic options assessment' in the updated Work Programme be open to the public?
- 2.4. Will the critical friend review of the evaluation of strategic options to be finalised in April 2016 and also under the heading 'High level sustainability and strategic options assessment' in the updated Work Programme be made available to the public?
 - (Please note that although Pt 6 of the Post SHMA report says 'the report from the critical friend (about assessment of Oxford's unmet need) has been finalised and published on the website of the lead authority', the document cannot be found on the site).
- 2.5. Please confirm the public participation arrangements in the course of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan component of the Work Programme
- 2.6. Please confirm the public participation arrangements of the final reports of the Work Programme currently scheduled to be delivered between July 2016 and early-mid September 2016

All decisions concerning the work of the Growth Board are made in public meetings and subject to scrutiny through the public participation process agreed by the Board. In addition, in common with all local government decisions, they are subject to the scrutiny arrangements of each council.

At the outset of the Post SHMA Strategic Work Programme the Board considered building further public participation into the Programme. However it concluded based on advice from the planning inspector, that this would not be appropriate. This is because the Board are not making decisions about the allocation of housing growth, this is a matter for district planning authorities, all of whom are required by law to subject their local plan processes to rigorous public examination and scrutiny.

The Board recognise however the degree of interest in its work and has committed to publishing all relevant reports on its website which is currently hosted by Cherwell DC. To date the report on the green belt and examination of Oxford's unmet need have been published and all further reports will follow once complete. Officers confirm that all reports are available on the site.

John Gordon, on behalf of the Need not Greed Coalition

"Would the board please confirm that in taking the SEP refresh exercise forward, and in the light of the prime minister's speech at the Paris earth summit when he said "instead of making excuses tomorrow to our children and grandchildren we should be taking action against climate change today" they re-commit to the pledge by Oxfordshire councils to reduce carbon emissions in the county by 50% by 2030."

The refresh of the Strategic Economic Plan, or SEP is being led by OxLEP and questions concerning the process of developing this document should be addressed to them.

Within the sustainable community strategy agreed by the Oxfordshire Partnership in 2008, members of the partnership anticipated a 50% reduction in CO2, on 2008 levels by 2030. The partnership strategy remains in place. Oxfordshire's local authorities continue to fulfil their individual commitments to delivering the strategy by consistently meeting a 3% year on year reduction in CO2 emissions on their own estates. Beyond their own activity and as the midpoint of the period covered by the strategy approaches, the Oxfordshire Environmental Partnership plans to review progress on CO2 reduction across all sectors in summer 2016.

The SEP is being developed by OxLEP and incorporates environmental and sustainability considerations. Contributing to the SEP process, a separate Strategic Environmental Economic Investment Plan has been agreed which outlines specific investment plans including for promoting investment in low carbon energy and the broader green economy.